Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited (formerly Jamshedpur
Utilities and Services Company Limited)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services
Limited (formerly Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise
the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, an_d total
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

4. We draw your attention to Note 26(K) to the financial statements, which describes the management's

assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the business operations of the
Company. The management believes that no adjustments are required in the financial statements as it
does not impact the current financial year, however, in view of the various preventive measures taken
(such as complete lock-down restrictions by the Government of India, travel restrictions etc.) and highly
uncertain economic environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods is
highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REP(?RT :
To the Members of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited (formerly Jamshedpur Utilities and Services

Company Limited)
Report on audit of the Financial Statements

Page 3 of 4
9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.
10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
and to communicate with them all relationships and other

ethical requirements regarding independence,
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a

Government of
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
13. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.
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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited (formerly Jamshedpur Utilities and Services
Company Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Page 1 of 2

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tata Steel
Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited (formerly Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company
Limited) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13(f) of the Independent Auditors” Report of even date to the members of
Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited (formerly Jamshedpur Utilities and Services
Company Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Page 2 of 2
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7. DBecause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026 E/E300009

Chartered Accountants
,Q{W 5\96.9 Lera
Gautam Wadhera

Partner

Membership Number: 508335

UDIN: 20508835AAAABY8798

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 30, 2020
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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel
Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited (formerly Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company
Limited) on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020

Page1of 3

i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year

and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency
of verification is reasonable.

(¢) The title deeds of immovable properties of land, as disclosed in Note 2 on fixed assets to the financial

statements, are held in the name of the Company. According to the information and explanation
given to us and the records examined by us, we report that immovable properties of building
amounting to Rs. 404 lakhs have been constructed on land not owned by the Company.

The physical vel"iﬁcation of inventory have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as

compared to book records were not material and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of
accounts.

The Company has granted unsecured loans, to one of its Subsidiary Company companies covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

(a) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted are

not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) In respect of the aforesaid loan, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has

been stipulated. The repayments of the principal amounts and interest have not been received as
stipulated in the agreement.

(c) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the total amount overdue for more than ninety days as at March

vii. (a)

31,2020 is Rs. 1,750 lakhs (including interest of Rs. 100 lakhs for the period May 31, 2012 to May
31, 2013), is considered doubtful of recovery as the subsidiary company had ceased its operation.
Accordingly the amounts have been fully provided for in these financial statements.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74,
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have
broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of
the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues,
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, goods and service tax and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.
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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel
Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited (formerly Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company
Limited) on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020
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viii.

Xvi.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or Government. The Company has not issued any debentures at the balance
sheet date.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
Also refer paragraph-14 of our main audit report.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to

the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E300009

Chartered Accountants

W (Ago.g Leve
Gautam Wadhera
Partner

Membership Number: 508835

UDIN: 20508835AAAABY8798
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2020
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
{(Formerly - Jumshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Note 1: Significant Accounting Policias

(1)

{2)

(b)

Company Information

Tats Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited (Formerly known as Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
(‘TSUISL’ or ‘the Company’) is & public limited Company incorparated in India with its registered office in Jamshedpur,
Iharkhand, India.

TSUISL is India’s first private sector comprehensive urban infrastructure service provider. Carved out of Tata Steel in 2004, it
has the legacy of over ten decades of experience in providing these services-water, waste water, power distribution, municipal
sclid waste management and town planning- at Jamshedpur.

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee {“%”) which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates.

As on March 31, 2020, Tata Steel Limited owns 100% of the ordinary share of the company and has the ability to Influgnce the
company operations.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 were approved by the board of directors and authorized for issue
on May 30, 2020.

Significant accounting policy

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise
indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”)
nollfled undet secuon 133 of Wik cotpanles Act, 2013 read with Companles {Indlan Accouriting Slatidards) Rules, ds drnunded
from time to time.

Basis for preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain assets and liabilities that
are required to be carried at fair values by Ind-AS.

The management of the Company have assessed its liquidity position (including the impact of COVID-19) and its possible
sources of funds. The management beliefs that the Company will be able to meet its obligation in next twelve months from the
balance sheet date. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

The Company has adopted the new accounting standard fnd AS 116 'Leases’ during the year using the modified retrospective
approach with right-of-use asset recognized at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued_lease payments relating to those leases. Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted.

The company’s immediate holding company Tata Steel Limited prepared its consolidated financial statements as required
under section 129(3) of the Act. TSUISL is an intermediate holding company with investments in subsidiaries, associates and

joint ventures and has availed the exemption as per proviso to rule 6 of section 129(3) of the act for not preparing its
consolidated financial statements,
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{c) Use of estimates and critical accounting judgments

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carying
values of assets and liabilities that are not clear from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions arée basued
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recopnized
in the period in which the estimate is revised, and future periods affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of financial statements, which may cause material adj ustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of impalrment, useful lives of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, valuation of deferred tax assets, provisions, contingent liabilities and [lair value
measurements of financial instruments as discussed below. Key source of estimation of uncertainty in respect of revenue
recognition and employee benefits have been discussed in the respective policies.

Impairment

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating units (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering
current economic conditions and trends, estimates future operating results and growth rate and anticipated future reonomic
and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts, The cash flows are discounted
using a suitable discount rate to calculate the present value.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting
period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortization expense in future periods.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.
Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as result of a past event and it is probable that the
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not
recognized in the financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including Discounted Cash Flow Model.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgiment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risks, credit risks
and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reporled fair value of financial instruments,

Retirement benefit obligations

The Company's retirement benefit obligation is subject to a number of judgments including discount rates, inflation and sslary
growth, Significant judgment is required when setting these criteria and a change in these assumptions would have 3 significant
impact on the amount recorded in the Company’s balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss. The Company sels these
judgements based on previous experience and third-party actuarial advice.
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Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

(d)

(e}

{f)

Property, plant and cquipasent

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset il it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle Is applied to the costs
incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part
of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Where an item of
Property, plant and equipment comprises major component having different useful lives, these components are accounted for

as separate items.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/deemed cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes
all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Trial run
expenses (net of revenue) are capitalised. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalised as part of

cost of qualifying assot.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets

Software and License costs are included in the balance sheet as intangible assets when it is probable that associated future
economic benefits would flow to the Company. In this case they are measured initially at purchase cost and then amortised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. All other costs on software and license are expensed in the statement of

profit and loss as and when incurred,

Intangible assets include development of property of Mysore landfill project. The project was at Build, Operate and Transfer
(BOT) basis under the Public Private Partnership (PPP) Model for a period of 28.8 years. Based on the assessment of Appendix C
of Ind AS 115, all the expenditure incurred for Property, plant and Equipment’s have been reclassified as Intangible assets.

Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation or amortization is provided so as to write off, on a straight-line basis, the cost of property, plant and equipment
and other intangible assets, These charges are commenced from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and
are spread over their estimated useful economic lives. The estimated useful lives of assets and residual values are reviewed
regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge is provided in respect of assets that are fully written down bul are
still in use. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of power business depreciation is provided on straight line
basis at the rates specified in Electricity Act, 2003

Depreciation on assets under construction commences only when the assets are ready for their intended use.

The estimated useful lives for the main categories of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets are:

Block of Assets . Estimated useful Iifmears)
Buildings o - = 10 - 6O Years
-mnFMachiFry i ) == 2-30VYears )
Office equipment ' » I 3-10 Years ]
Furniture and Fixtures o ~ 5-10Years -
| Vehicles - - . © 8vears
ulnt—angible Assels T — | o
" Assets covered under Electricity Act (ﬁfe as prescribed under the Electricity Act)




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURY SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies
5] G

(8

Assets value up to X5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.
Inpatrment

At each balance sheet date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying amount of those assets may not be recowverable through
continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determnine the extent
of impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assels, the
company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value [ess costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the e stimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of Lhe
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not be en adjusted. An
impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that w ould have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the assetin prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized

as income immediately,
Leases
The company as lessee

The company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components ol the
contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. The Company recognises right-of-
usa assat reprecenting ite right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the leose commencement date. The cost of the
right-of-use asset measured at inception comprises of the amount of initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any
Jease payments made at or before the commencement date.

The right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses,
if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line
method from the commencement date aver the shorter of lease term or usetul lite ot right-ot-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently
remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease moditications, The Group
recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying
amouitt of the right-of-use asset s reduced to zero and there s ¢ luther reducion in the measurement of the lease hability,
the Group recognises any remaining amount of the re-rneasurement in the statement of profit and loss.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities are expensed to the statement of profit and

loss in the period in which the events or conditions which trigger those payments occur.
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TATA STECL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVITCES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utiiitics ond Sesvices Compuny Limited)
Note 1: Significant Accounting Pelicies

(i)

G)

The Company accounts for sale and lease back transaction, recognising 1ight of use assets and lease Hability, measured in the
same way as other right of use assets and lease liability. Gain or loss on the sale transaction is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

The company as lessor

Operating lease — Renta) income from operating leases is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant Jease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Finance lease — When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments is
recognized as a receivable, The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognized
as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognized over the term of the lease using the net investment method belore
tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

Investment in Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost/deemed cost less accumulated impairment loss, if
any. Where an indication exists, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and an impairment provision I recognized, if
required immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of such investments, difference between the net disposal
proceeds and carrying amount is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) arc added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or
financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financlal assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest
JiLonie U1 expeise vvet e televant perlod. the effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

{i) Financial assets
Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and bank balances consist of:

Cash and cash equivalents - which includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term deposits which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have maturities
of less than one year from the date of such deposits. These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Other bank balances - which includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage.
Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the fingncial asset give




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limjted)
Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within o
business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial vssets
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial asset not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carri ed at falr value

through profit or loss,
Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost and lai r value hrough
other comprehensive income.

The Company recogiizes life time expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a financi ng transaction.

For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve
months expected credit losses is recognized. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognized if the
credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly increased since initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial assets

The company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have

to pay.

if the company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the company
continues to recognize the financial asset and recognizes a collateralized borrowing of the proceeds received.

{ii) tinancial liabihties and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all its
liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant.

Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognized over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profitand loss

Derecognition of financial liabilities

expire.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

{k} Retirement benefit costs
Defined contribution plan

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state managed
retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Compa ny’s obligations
under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
will actuaial valualion being caied oul al each balance sheat date. Re-measurement goins and losses of the net defined
benetit liability/ (asset) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. Ihe service cost, net Intesrest on the et
defined benefit liability/ (asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs.

Past service cost is recognized as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognized, whichever is earlier.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined-benefit
obligation as reduced by the fair value plan assets.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service are recognized based on actuarial valuation at the present value of the obligation as on
the reporting date.

{}) Inventories

inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs comprise direct materials and, where applicable,
direct labor costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition,

Stares and spare parts are carried at lower of cost and nel realizable value.

Provisions are made to cover slow moving and aobsolete items based on historical experience of utilization.
(m) Provisions

ProvIsions are recognized in the balance sneet when the company has a present obligation {legal ur LonstiuLlive) as d tesuliul
a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benetits which can be reliably
estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are measured on discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

(3) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has
indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and

(b) As a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those

responsibilities.
{n) Onerousconiracis

A pravisian far anerniis enntracts is recognized when the expected henefits tn he derived by the Company from a contract are
; nt value




TATASTEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - lamshedpur Utilities and Seevices Company Limited)
Note 1: Significant Accounting Palicii

(o)

(p)

(a)

()

of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before
a provision is established, the Company recognizes any impairment oss on the assets associated with that contract.

Contribution from Custemers

Contribution received from consumers towards installation of assets pertaining to distribution of power and water, are
credited to Deferred Income on capitalization of related assets. An amount in proportion to the depreciation charge for the
year on such assets is transferred to the statement of profit and loss.

Government grants

Buvsttienl g il 1@laled W gxpenudilune e propyily, pldait dnd wuipsneol Hte Ligdilen] L Ui stateient of praft aod Joss
over the useful lives of qualifying assets or other systematic basis representative of the pattern of fulfillment of obligations
associated with the grant received. Total grants received less the amounts credited to the statement of profit and loss at the
balance sheet date are included in the balance sheet as deferred income.

Insurance

Insurance premiums in respect of insurance placed and reinsurance premiums in respect of risks are charged to Lhe statement
of profit and loss in the period to which they relate.

Taxation

Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted in
countries where the Company operates by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences, In contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled, or the asset is
realizerl based nn the tax rates and tax laws that have heen enactec or substantially pnarted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to cover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority and there
are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense or income in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate
to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognized

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred 14y sssels nelagde Miniomm Allernale Taz (MAT) patd Inaccordanes with the Tas Taws incbndiag whic s likely Lo give
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Note 1; Significant Accowring Policles

(t)

tax assets in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the future economic henefit
associated with the asset will be realized.

Revenue

The company has applied the Standard ind AS 115-Revenue from Conlract with customer for the Annual reporting period
commencing April 1, 2018 which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognized in the
financial statements.

The company derives revenue [ram the transfer of goods and services pver the period of time.
Revenue from Services and Construction Contracts
Revenue from providing services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognized based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a
proportion of the total services to be provided as the customer receives and uses the benefits simultaneously.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting
increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances
that give rise to the revision become known by management.

For contract of fixed expenditure plus margin, revenue is recognized based on the actual service provided on which
expenditure been incurred and in which agreed margin is added.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services
to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the company does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

Revenue from Sale of Power

Revenue from Sales of Power is recognized as per the prescribed rate approved by Jharkhand State Electricity Regulatory
Council {(JSERC) for the units consumed by the consumer.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on o time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to that assets net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

The financial statements of the company are presented in (X}, which are the functional currency of the company and the

presentation currency for the financial statements.

In preparing the individual financial statements af the individual entities, transactions io currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated iri foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in toreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not translated.




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - famshedpiar Utitities and Services Compony Limited)

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

{u)

(v)

{w)

(%}

Borrowing Costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale,

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifylng assets
is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Earnings per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculaled Ly dividing the profil fur the year atlributable to equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated using the weighted average number of shares and dilutive potential shares except where
the result would be anti-dilutive.
Segment Reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns, internal organization,
management structure and the internal performance reporting systems. The accounting policies adopted for the segment
reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019 containing the following new amendments to Ind
AS which the Company has applied as they are effective for annual periods beginning April 1, 2019.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes (Uncertainty over Income tax treatments) — Not applicable to the Company since no
such transactions during the year.

Prepayment Features with Megative Compensation — Amendments to Ind AS 109 - Not applicable to the Company since no
such transactions during the year,

Long-Term Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures — Amendments to Ind AS 28 — Not applicable to the Company.

Other Amendments:

s Amendments to Ind AS 103, Business Combinations — Not applicable to the Company since no such transactions during
the year.

o Amendments to Ind AS 11, laint Arrangement — Nat applicahle tn the Company since no such transactions during the

year.

»  Amendments to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes — This Amendment related to dividend on financials instruments classified as

equity. No dividend declared during the year.

e Amendments to Ind AS 23, Borrowings Costs — Not applicable, since Company does not have any borrowings,
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements

03A - Right to use Property, Plant and Equipments 2 in Lakhs
b culais Freehold Prol?erty, Plant (.Jffice Total Right

. Land and Equipments  Equipments “to Use assets
Additions relating to transition under Ind AS 116 - 171 69 240
Additions - 128 - 128
Disposals - - - «
Other re-classifications (Transfers in / out) _ 6 2 ; 6
CostasatMarch31,2020 6 299 69 374
Charge for the year - E 0 191 23 134
Disposals - - # -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2020 0 111 23 134
Net Block as at March 31,2020 6 188 a6 240

ans

charterad Account

; A £
N _ a0




Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement
04 - Equity accounted investments
Particulars

Unguoted Investments (Face of Rs 10 each fully
paid up)

SEZ Adityapur Limited

Naba Diganta Water Management Limited
Total Equity accounted investments

Notes:

Name of the joint venture

Naba Diganta Water Management Limited

SEZ Adityapur Limited

05 - Investments in subsidiaries
Unquoted Investment in subsidiary company

Cost at beginning of year
Movement during the year
Cosl al end ot year

Provision at beginning of year
Movement during the year
Provision at end of year
Carrying value at end of year

Name of the subsidiary

Haldia Water Management Limiter

1,66,64,210 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
[March 31, 2019: 1,66,64,210 Equity shares of
Rs. i0each] =~

Kalimati Global Shared Services Limited
40,000,006 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

[March 31, 2019: 40,00,006 Equity shares of Rs.
10 each]

TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Nos X in Lakhs Nos T In Lakhs
25,497 3 25,497 3
1,36,53,000 1,365 1,36,53,000 1,365
1,36,78,497 1,368 1,36,78,407 1,368

Principal Actlvity

BOT “;;rbjeéts and PPP
Model comprising of
integrated water supply
system and sewerage
system.

Develop the Special
Econamic Zone (SEZ) at
Adityapur, Jamshedpur.

As at March 31,2020
(X in Lakhs)
2,066

2,066
1,666

1,666
400

Principal Activity

NOT prajecte and D&M
of the water treatiment
Facilities In Haldia
region.

Business ol providing
outsourcing/
cansultancy tervices

(a) Details of Entities material joint venture at the end of the reporting year is as follows:

Place of incorporation Proportion of ownership interest
and principal place of  and voting right held by the entity.

business As at March 31,  As at March 31,
S US|\, o Sl 2019
West Bengal, India 74% 74%
Jharkhand, India 51% 51%

As at March 31, 2019
(X in Lakhs)

1,681

185

2,066

1,666

1,666
400

Place of incorporation Proportion of awnership interest
and principal place of  and voting right held by the entity,

business As at March 31,  As at March 31,
2020 2UlY
Wool Bungal, lndia GO% G096
West Bengal, India 100% 100%

uclura
\.\‘.b"xI Se" [
o
e i)

——
AAC.q5




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

06 - Other financial Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 (X in Lakhs) As ot March-31, 2019 (% in Lakhs)
Non Current Current Total Non Current Current Total
(a) Contract assets 202 14,012 11,214 . 11,39% 11,395
{b) Securily deposits - 250 250 - 250) 250
(c) Loans and advances to group companies - 4,617 4,617 - 4,996 1,996
(d) Earmarked Non-current Cash and bank balances* 68 - 68 349 « 114
Gross other financial assets 270 18,879 19,149 349 16,641 16,990

Less: Provision for bad & doubtful other financial assets

{a) Cantract assets 3 % . . =
(b) Security deposits = :
[¢) Loans and advances to group companies - 4,617 4,617 : 4,996 4,996

=} -

(d) Earmarked Non-current Cash and bank balances - - . - .
Total provision for bad & doubtful other financial assets - 4,617 4,G17 - 4,996 4,996
Met other financial assets 270 14,262 14,532 349 11,645 11,944

Classification of other financial assets

Secured, considered good ] = - N . 3
Unsecured, considered good 270 14,262 14,532 349 11,645 11,994
Doubtful - 4,617 4,617 - 4,996 4,996
Gross other financial assets 270 18,879 19,149 349 16,641 16,990
MNates:

*Earmarked bank balances represent deposits not due for realisation within 12 months from the balance sheet date. These are held agai nst issue of bank

guarantes.

07 - Other non-financial assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 (R in Lakhs) As at March 31, 2019 (% in Lakhs)
Non Current Current Total Non Current Current Total
(a) Capital advances ' 9 - 9 37 - 37
{b) Advance with public bodies 2,101 1,492 3,593 2,105 1,062 3,167
(c) Prepaid Lease Payments - - - 6 o 6
{d) Other loans and advances 10 3,218 3,228 12 4,599 4,611
Gross non financial assets 2,120 4,710 6,830 2,160 5,661 7,821

Less: Provision for bad & doubtful non financial assets
(a) Capital advances . . : : .
(3} Advance with public bodies 1,474 : 1,474 1,315 & 1,315
(c) Prepaid Lease Payments = = -

537 537 127 127

(¢f) Other loans and advances . -

Total provision for bad & doubtful non financial assets 1,474 537 2,011 1,315 122 1,412
Tatal other non financial assets 646 4,173 4,819 845 5,539 6,379
{lassification of other non-financial assets

Secured, considered good o - . - -

lInsecured, considered good 646 4,173 4,819 845 5,534 6,379
Doubtlul 1,474 537 2,011 1,315 127 1,412
Gross other non-financial assets 2,120 4,710 6,830 2,160 5,661 7,821
Notes:

() Other loans and advances includes laans given to Key managerial personnel aggregates to X 0,40 Lakhs As at March 31, 2020 {March 31, 2019: X0.57
Lakhs),

(i) Prepaid lrase payment relate tn land leases classified as operating in nature as the title is not expected to transfer at the end ol e lease tenm und
considering that tand has an indefinite economic life. During the current year, amount has been reclassified under leases as per ind AS 116.
{¢) ‘0" indicates value below the rounding off conversion of X Lakhs. —_——
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur 11Ities and Services Company Limited)
MNaotes Forming Part of Finantial Statement

08 - Inventorles

) i at M g
paticaiars As at March 31, 2040 As ot March 31, 2019

(T in Lakhs) {2 )n Lakhs)
Ihwentocies (lower of cosl of net realizable value)
- Land, plots and canstruclion in progress 7.022 5,417
- Stores & Spares 1,678 1,392
Totallnventoties 9,300 7,809

Motes:

(a) The value of stores and spares above is stated after impairment of X 642 Lukhs (March 31, 2019: R 597 Lakhs) for provision for slow iniving and
ohsolete item.

() Land, plots and construction in progress Is recognised as cost or fair value whichever is Jower, Ouring the year ended March 31, 2020, Lands was
valued from a certified valuer, Fair value of the land as per the valuation report is % 19,319 Lakhs. Hence land has been recognised at cost.

08 - Current Investments
Partlculars As at March 31,2020  As at March 31, 2019
(%I Lakhs) {%In Lakhs)
Unquoted nvestments
{a) tavestment in inutual funds
TATA MONEY MARKET FUND 1,101 .
Total Current Investments 1,101 -
10 - Trade Receivables

As at March 31, 2020
{Xin Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2049

Particulars [R in Lakhs)

‘Non Current Current Non Current Current
{a) Secured, Considered good . 2,504 _ - 3,307
(b} Unsecured, Considered good 2,186 17,872 - 26,772
{€) Unsecured, Considered Doubtlul 1,571 1,228 - 3,589
Less: Allowance for Credit losses 1,571 1,228 . 3,589
2,186 20,376 . 30,079
MNotes:
|a) Ageing of trade receivaliles and credit risk arising there from is as below:
As at March 31, 2020{X in Lakhs)
Grass Credit Risk Allowance for Net Credit Risk
Credit loss
Asfiount not yet due 11,112 . 11,112
Dne month overdue 3,978 - 3,978
Two months overdue 1,606 . 1,606
Threa months overdue 831 - 831
Between three to six months averdue 507 - 507
treatar than six months overdue 7,327 2,799 4,528
25,361 2,799 22,562
As at March 31, 2019 (% in | akhs)
Gross Cradit Risk Alowanca for Mat Cradit Risk
Credit loss
Anount nol yel due 19,844 - 19,844
Dnie month overdue 2,228 - 2,228
Twa months overduc 1,608 - 1,648
three months overdue 109 - 109
fetwean Lthree to six months overdue 953 - 953
fareater than siv manthg ouqrdug 0,006 1,509 5,297
33,668 3,589 30,079

{b)The Company considers its maximum exposure to credit risk with respect to custorners As at March 31, 2020 to be X 22,562 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: 2
30,079 Lakhs), which is the fair value of trade receivables {after allov:ance for credit losses).

O the trade receivable balance As at March 31,2020 X 11,836 Lakhs (A< at March 31, 2019 of T 18,562 Lakhs) is due from Tata Steel Limited the holding
company, and X 2,186 Lakhs (As at March 31, 2019 of X 3,095 Lakhs} is due from Mysore city corporation, the entities largest customers. There are no

other customers who represents more than 10% of the total balance of Trade Receivables.

{£) Movement in Allowance for Credit Losses:

As at March'31, 2019

. As at March 31, 2020
Particulars

{Xin Lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,589
Provision created during the year 802
Pravisiong revarsed during the year (152)
Frovision for bad & doubtful debts written back — _2'"03 {1,440)
Balance at the end of the year o 2,799
Gl

{d) There are no outstanding debts due from directors or ¢




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

11 - Cash and Bank Balances

. As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019
Particulars

(T in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
(a) Cash in hand 8 B
(b) Unrestricted Balances in current accounts 2,344 729
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,352 732
Other Balance with Banks
(a) Earmarked Balances with banks T2 2,752
{i} In Current Account - 2,332
(i) In Deposit Account 3,772 420
Tatal cash and bank balances 6,124 3,484
Notes:

(a) Earmarked cash and bank balances primarily represents balances held against issue of bank guarantee and pawer
husiness.

12 - Share Capital

As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019

Particulars (X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)

Authorised :
3,12,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 3,120 3,120
(March 31,2019: 3,12,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each)

Issued , Subscribed and Fully Paid up :
2,43,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 2,435 2,435
(March 31,2013: 2,43,50,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each)

Notes:

(a) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares and the amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the
FRPAITING PO I AL Dulows

Particulars Number of Shares Share Capital
(X in Lakhs)
Balance at March 31, 2018 2,03,50,000 2,035
Shares issued during the year 40,00,000 400
Balance at March 31, 2019 2,43,50,000 2,435
Shares issued during the year . -
Balahes at Varch 31, 2020 2,43,50,000 2,435

(a) Of the above 2,43,49,940 Cquity Shares (As at March 31,2019: 2,43,49,940 Equily Shares) are held by Tala Steel
Limited, the holding Company.

(b} The rights, powers and preferences relating to each class of share capital and the qualifications, limitations and
restrictions thereof are contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

(c) In respect of every equity share, voting rights shall be in same proportion as the capital paid up on such equity share
hears to the total paid up capital of the company.

[d) The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuring
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

(e) In the evenl of liquidation, the shareholders of Equity Shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
(f) On April 16, 2018, the company invited its shareholders to subscribe to a right issue of 40,00,000 s{s&ly shares}{:’@\
. {issue was ful ‘%‘

subscribed,




TATA STEEL UITILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerdy - Jamshedpur Utilities ond Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

13 - Borrowings

Particulars _ AsatMarch 31, 2020 (* In Lakhs) |

iong Term Current Short Term
maturities of Long-
term *
[a) Working Capital Demand Loans from banks - .
) Lease Liabilities 78 15)
Total Borrowing 78 151 ¥

Notes:

14 - Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 (% In Lakhs)
Noan Current Current Total
{a] Current maturities of Lease liabillies - 151 151
[b) Creditors for other liabilities
(i) Creditors for capital supplies/services - 556 556
(i) Other credit balances
- Security and other deposits 7,645 606 8,241
- Contribution for capital expenditure . 1,661 1,661
- Contract Liability 825 625 1,450
- Other credit balances s 284 284
Total Other financial liabilitles 8,460 3,883 12,343

15 - Provisions

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 (% in Lakhs)
Nan Current Current Total

[ Provision for employee benefits

{1} Long-term Employee Benefits 3,569 584 4,153

(2) Provision for employee separation compensation 1,052 269 1,321

(3) Employee redundancy provision 202 80 282
[ti) Other Provisions

(1) Provision for Performance guarantee - 139 139

(2) Provision for estimated loss on contracts 354 201 555!

{3) Provisions for Liquidated Damages 162 333 495
Tatal Provisions 5,339 1,606 6,345
Notes:
{a) The details of movement In other provisians is as below: Xin Lokhs

Particulars Performance Estimated loss on Liyuidated
Guarantee contracts Damapes

Balance at March 31,2018 155 3985 363
Provision created during the year 31 [¢] 453
Provisions reversed/utilised during the year - (36) -
Balance at March 31, 2019 186 359 816
Provision created during the year - 197 126
Pravisions reversed/utilised during the year (47) {1) (447)
Balance at March 31, 2020 139 555 495

As at March 33, 2019 (€ In Lakhs)

Total Long Term Curtant Shorn
maluritles of Torm
Langaeim *
. ‘ 12
229
229 - 12

{a) = Current maturities of iong-term lease liabilitics is reported as a part of other current liabilities {Refer note no - 14).
{b) In the previous year, the company only recognised lease assets and lease liabilities only in relation to leases that were classified as finance lease under Ind AS 17, Leases. The campany il
ne finance lease during the previous year. For adjustments recognised on adoption of Ind AS 116 on April 01, 2019, refer note 26{1).

As at March 31, 2019 (% in Lakhs)

Non Current Current Tatal
388 388
7.190 514 1,704
- 1,883 1,883
. 1,433 1,433
C 342 32
7,150 4,560 11,750

As at March 31, 2009 (3 in Lakhs)

Non Current Current Total
3,252 639 3,891
1,176 259 1,435
183 117 300
- 186 186
359 359
- 816G 816
4,611 2,376 6,987

Tots)
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TATASTEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - lamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

16 - Retirement benefit obligations

Particulars

(a) Retiring Gratuity
(b) Other Defined Benoefit Provisions
Total Retirement benefit obligations

17 - Deferred Income

Particulars

(a) Grants for property, plant & equipment
{b) Other deferred income
Taotal Deferred Income

18 - Other non-financial liabilities

Particulars

(a) Advances received from customers

(b) Employee recoveries and employer contributions

{c) Statutory Dues (GST, Excise duty, service tax, TDS, etc)
(d) Other credit balances

Total Other non-financial liabilities

19 - Trade Payables
_Particulars

{a) Craditors for supplies / senvicas
(1) Tutal wditstanding due of IICLo ana small enterplises
(Refer nute 26F).
{il} Total outstanding due other than (a)(1) above

(b) Craditors for accrued wages and salaries

Total Trade Payables

_As at March 31, 2020 (X in Lakhs)

Non Current Current Total
1,017 - 1,017
258 11 269
1,275 11 1,286

As at March 31, 2020 (€in Lakhs)

Non Current Current Total
266 54 320
8,013 722 8,735
8,279 776 9,055

As at March 31,2020 (X in Lakhs)

Non Current Current Total
4,125 4,125
268 268
1,113 1,113
. 4,004 4,004
- 3,600 9,600

As at March 31, 2020 [T in Lakhs)

Non Current Current Total
= 1,115 1,115
189 26,145 26,334
56 6,204 6,260
245 33,464 33,709

As at March 31, 20:19 (% Jo Lakhs)

Non Current  Curremt Total
365 . 36%
177 9 186
542 9 551

As at March 31, 20 19 (Tin Lakhs)

Non Current Currenit Tatal
320 53 373
6,801 603 7404
7,121 656 1,277

As at March 31, 2029 (% in Lakhs)

Non Current Curr_ent Total
6,641 6,641
260 260
= 1,916 1,916
= 3,968 3968
s 12,785 12,785

As at March 31, 2019 (T in Lakhs)

MNon Current Current Totol
260 360
- 27,555 27,555
44 5,039 5083
44 32,954 32,998

%, Co Charfergy
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Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

20 - Revenue from Operations

TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilitles and Services Compony Limited)

For the year ended

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Particulars (% in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)
(a) Service Income 54,327 a8,306
{b) Income From Construction Activities 20,105 206,427
(c) Sale of Power 32,572 36,680
Total Revenue from Operations 1,07,004 1,11,413
21 - Other Income
Particulars
(a) Interest income 373 a5
{b) Net Gain / (Loss) on sale of investments 121 78
(c) FV Changes on non-derivative FA/FL 1 .
(d) Liability no longer required written back i3 849
{e) Other miscellaneous income 551 520
(f) Dividend Income 50 .
Total Other Income 1,169 1,492
22 - Direct Expenses
Particulars
(a) Stores and spares consumed 13,564 17,618
{b) Fuel oil consumed 380 398
{c) Purchase of power 26,969 31,143
(d) Cost of services 39,200 34,673
Total Direct Expenses 80,113 83,832
23 - Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars
(a) Salaries and wages, including bonus 14,417 14,287
{(b) Contribution to provident and other funds
(1) Provident Fund and Employee Pension Scheme 859 838
(2) Superannuation Fund and other fund 186 207
(3) Gratuity 388 452
(c) Staff welfare expenses 629 574
Total Employee Benefit Expenses 16,479 10,358

Sarikela Kharsawa power project.

Salary and wages amounting to X 53 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: X 53 Lakhs) have been capitalised during the year for

The company has recognised, in the statement of profit and loss for the current period, an amount of X 267 Lakhs (March
31, 2019: X 312 Lakhs) as expenses under the following kinds of employee benefits with respect to Key managerial

personnel:
Particulars
(a) Short term employee benefits 183 255
(b) Long term employee benefits 84 57
267 312
24 - Finance Cost
Particulars
(a) Interest expense e Y "’ﬁ‘\
) : i )

{1) Interest Debentures and Fixed Loans Gl “')‘?\\."4}:\'} 2

(2) Inlerest on Others > Chartered Accountants \) \ 721
(b) Finance charges on leases L AR 27

Al Yy
Total Finance Cost N ST09026E €22 3/ 750
= I =3




TATA STEEL UTIUTIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

25 - Other Expenses

For the year ended

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Bartigdlars (X in Lakhs) (< in Lakhs)
{a) Repairs to plant and machinery 325 290
{b) Rent 115 234
{c) Rates and taxes 202 307
{d) Insurance 71 38
(e) Provisions for doubtful debts and advances 1,221 764
(1) Allowance for credit loss 650 584
(2) Provision for doubtful advances 571 180
(3) Bad debts & advances written off 1,821 -
{4) Provision for bad & doubtful debts & advances written back (1,821) ~«
(f) Payment to auditors [Excluding GST of X 4 Lakhs (March 31,2019
GST of X 2 Lakhs)]
(1) As Auditors 9 9
(2) For Taxation matters 2 2
{3) Fur Other services 6 1
(4) Auditors out-of-pocket expenses 3 .
{g) Legal and other professional fees 322 149
{h) Advertisement, Promotion & Selling Expenses 38 55
(i) Travelling Expenses 754 887
(j) Miscellaneous expenses 671 1,710
Tatal Other Expenses 3,739 4,446

Notes:

122 Lakhs (year ended March 31, 2019: X 106 Lakhs),

project

{a) Amount reguired to be spent by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities during the year was X

{b) Revenue expenditure charged to statement of profit and loss in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR)
activities undertaken during the year is X 99 Lakhs [X 85 Lakhs paid in cash and X 14 Lakhs is yet to be paid) as compared
to X110 Lekhs (X 73 Lakhs paid in cash and X 37 Lakhs is yet to be paid) for the year ended March 31, 2019,

{c) Other expenses amounting to X 5 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: X 6 Lakhs) have been capitalised during the year for Sarikela
Kharsawa power project and X 444 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: X 141 Lakhs) have been taken to inventory for real estate

m\\\:»
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTUNE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly - Jomshedpur Ulilities and Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

2G(A): Financial Instruments

{i) Capital Management
The Company’s capital management is intended 1o create value for shareholders by facilitating Uie miesting of 1ong-term and short-term goals of th company,

The company determines the amount of capital required based on annual aperating plans and other strategle Investment plans. The funding needs are et
hrough equity, cash generated from operations, ather long-term/short-term borrowings. The company's policy is simed at combination of short~tenn and lang-
1erm borrowings.

The company monitors the capital structure based on net debl Lo equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the company. Net dabt incluies
interest bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances (including non-current earmarked balances) and current investme nis,

ek "Mat-Mgr:kl;lg AsatMarch
T . é_i,lﬂlﬂwg&,
e e | s s s sg 4

Equity Share Capital 2,438
Dther Equity 13,948 1
Total Equity [A) 16,383 13,734
Shart term Borrowings : 12
Currant Maturity of Lease liabilitios - 151 .
Gross Debits (B) 151 12
Total Capital {A+B) 16,534 13,746
Gross debts as above 151 12
Less: Current Investments 1,101 -
Less: Cash and bank balances 6.124 3,181
Less: Other Bank balances (Non current Earmarked balances) 68 349
Net Debts {C) (7,142} (3,821)
Net Debts to Equity {0.47) {0.34)

Net debt te equity as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 has been computed based on average equily.

{ii) Categories of financial instruments

. Asat March “Asat March:

8 Ty e a . | 31,2020, - 3Lam95
RS i/ i "% jn Lakhs Rin Lakhis:
Financial assets
Measured at fair value through Statement of profit and loss (FVTPL}
{a) Mandalorily measured:

(i) Investments in mutual funds 1,101 -
Measured at Amortized cost
{a) Cash and bank balances 6,124 3,484
(bl Trade Receivables
[c) Other linancial assels 14,532 11,994
|t} lnvestments in subsidiariesg 400 400
Financial Liabilities
Measured at Amortized cost
(a) Borrowsings g | 78| 12
{b) Trade payables 33,709 32,998
(¢} Other financial liabilities 12,343 11,750

Investments in mutual funds are mandatorily classified as {air value through statement of profit and loss.

Al e eod ufl Uie yepur Ung perlud, tere sie nu signtlicont Loncents abuiis of L2OIL FISK 10F TINGNCIAI1 33sets designated at Fair Value through Proht & Loss (FVIPL).
The carrying amount réflécted abave represents the entities maximum exposure to credil risk for such financial assets.

(iii) Fair Value Measurement
The short term financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortized cost which is approximately to their fair values,

Investments carried at their fair values, are generally based on market quotstions. The fair value in respect of the unquoted equity instruments cannot be reliahly
measured.

ql\n.b(.tLh‘a 5

could have realized or paid in sale tronsoctions 05 of reapective dates. As zuch, [dlL_:‘h-ly;- wl fiekial instrunmients subsequent Lo the g ,@

different from the amounts reported at each reporting date /{"‘Cn FHT“‘ ——
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Compuny Linyited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

The following Loble provides an analysis of linancial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recagnition at Tair value, prouped into Lesiel & ta Level 3
as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes finoncial assets and liabilities 1hat are measured by reference to quoted prices
{unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This categary cansists of quoled equity shares and mutual fund investments

Valuation techniques with observable inputs {Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured vsing inputs othu¢r than quoled
prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assel or liability, either directly (l.e., as prices) or indirectly [i.e., derlved from price 5). This luvel ol
hierarchy includes Group’s over-the-counter (OTC) derivative contracls,

Valuation technigues with significant unobservable inputs {Level 3): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inpuls thit are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs), Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model did not based on
assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instcument nor are they based on a vailable market
data. This Jevel includes investment in unquoted equity shares.

Investment in mutual funds is measured at fair value at the end of each reporting periad: The following table gives Information about how the fair values are
determined.

iins e e
L 2 =B i it
i = ss Ll AT !
En A hféf:::l:u' ' cnn‘:i:e's,
2 i Lakhs % {n Lakhs: s i/
- : Input{s}
V'S €
Investments in Mutual funds 1,101 = Level 1 t i 3 in the
active market.

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.
{iv) Financial Risk management

In the course of its business, the company is exposed primarily to interest rate and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financiai
instruments. The company has a risk management policy which not only covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risk assoclated with finarcial assets and

liabilities such as interest rate risk and credit risk. The risk management aims at:
1. Create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of interest rate fluctuation on the Company's business plan,

2. Achieve greater predictability 10 earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.
Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash llows that may result from a change in the price of a linanciul
instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, liquidity and other
market changes. Future speofic market movements cannot be normally predicled with reasonable accuracy,

Interest rate Risk:

Interest rale risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any movement in the reference rates could have an impact
on the Company’s cash flows as well as costs.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on Lhe exposure to interest rates for financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period. For
financial assets/liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstandin g for the whole
year.

Il interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the entities profit for the year ended March 31, 2020 would
increase/decrease by Nil. (For the year ended March 31, 2019: by ® 0.12 Lakhs). This is mainly on account of company’s exposure to interest rates an its variable
rate borrowing

Credit risk management:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or obligati ons. Credit risk
encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. Financial instruments that are subject
lo credlt risk and concentration thereof principally consist of trade receivables, loan receivables, and investments, cash and cash equivalents. None of the
financial instruments of the company results in material concentration of credit risk.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers. Cngaing credit evaluation is performed on the financial conditian of account receiva bles and where
appropriate, provision has been cansidered in the heoks,

Apart from Tata Steel Limited, the parent company the entity does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty. Concentralion of
credu risk related to Tata ste°| Limited is approx. 47. 89% (As on 31st March 2019: 55.95%) of the gross trade recelvables Concentratlon of erpgs af Mysare

year,




TATASTEEL UTILITHES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilitles anid Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financiol Statemont

Lquidity risk management:

Liquidity risk refers to the risk Lhat the company cannet meet Its financial obligations. Yha objectiva of liquldity risk management is to maintain sofficient liqisithty
and ensure that funds are avallabla for use a3 per requirements.

The entity has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines fremvarious banks, Tha antity invests its sueplus funds in bank fixed doposit and liquid sad
liquid plus schemes of mutual funds, which caery noflow miatk ta market rsk.

The table below provides detalls rogarding the contractual maturities of financial (abilities including estimated Interest payments.

% in Lakhs)
B LiEcnictuolEnsh | 3 AMorenhian )
s ] e 1 vears
March 31, 2020
Non-derivative financial llabilitles
Horrowings
(i} Principal 229 229 151 78
(il) Intarast . | | = =
Trade payaliles 33,709 33,709 33464 245 .
Other financial liabilities 12,191 12,191 3,731 415 7,615
16,129 16,129 17,346 1,148 1,635
March 31, 2019
Nuon-derivative financial llabilities
Borrawings
(1) Principal 12 12 12
{1}) Interest . - . . .
Trade payables 32,008 32,998 32,954 44 -
Other financial liabifities 11,750 11,750 4,560 v 2,190
A1,760 44,760 37,526 44 7,190




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Compony Limited)
Notes Farming Part of Financial Statement

26{B}): Employee Benefits

{)) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company participates in a number of defined contribulion plans on behalf of relevant parsonncl. Any exponse recopnized in relsition 1o thew
schemes represents the value of contributions payable during the period by them at rates specified by the rules of those plons. The anly amoeunts

included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were not due to be paid until after the end of the reporting
period,

The company has recognized, in the profit and loss account for the current period, an amount of X 1,045 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: X1, 04% Lakhs) &5
expenses under the following defined contribution plans:

: e T | Aprmarzoi

| [iEnE oS t ElSis Sonteibiionitol] el (2 I Lakhs).
{#) |Provident Fund 669 652
(b) |Employees Pension Scheme 190 186
{c) |TISCO Employees Pension Scheme 64 66
{d) |Superannuation Fund 122 141
Total Benefit {Contribution) 1,045 1,045

The major defined contribution plans operated by company are as below:
Provident fund:

The company provide provident fund benefit for eligibie employee as per applicable regulation where both employees and the Company rmake monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary.

The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the provident fund and pension fund set up as an irrevocable trust by the company or to
respective Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Central Provident Fund under the State Pension scheme.

Superannuation fund:

The company in India has 3 superannuation plan. Employees who are members of the defined benefit superannuation plan are entitled to benclits
depending on the years of service and salary drawn.

Separate irrevocable trusts are maintained for employees covered and entitled to benefits, The company contributes up to 15% ar % 1,50 Lakhs
whichever is lower, of the eligible employee’s salary to the trust every year. Such contributions are recognized as an expense when incurred. The
company has no further obligation beyond this contribution.

{ii) Defined benefit plans

The company operates post retirement defined benefit plans as follows:
a) Funded
i. Post Retirement Gratuity
b) Unfunded
i. Farewell Gifts
ii. Packing and Transportation benefit

Post Retirement Gratuity:

The company has an nbligatian towards gratuity, a defined banefit retirement plan covering cligible employecs. The plan provides for a lurvg-sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on terminztion of employment ot an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 days
salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The company makes annual contributions to
gratuity funds established as trusts or insurance companies. Companies liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial
valuation

The following table <et< ant the amounts recognized in the financial statcments for Whe reliring gratuity plans in respact of the company:

_ ; =5 = ! For the Yearended
Change in Defined Benefit Obligation Marchi 31,2020 March 31,2019
i%in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
5. |Obligation as at the beginning of the year o i 6,498 6,337
"b. |Current service cost o 374 428
c. |Interest cost B 454
d. |Re-measurement {gains)/losses
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assurption 442 =
| | Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments 208
_Actuariai gains and lossas arising Irom changes in demographic assualion .
| e. [Benefits paid "% CoCharter (913)
Obllgatlon as at the end of the year e ! 7 NR3




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRULCTURE SERVICES UMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financini Statement

Changein Plan Assets

. |Fairvalue of plin assets owcat bogloning of the year = ; iras ——a SASP 5, 206
b. [Interest income e e 440 A
¢. |Re-mepsurement pains/(lonaes) =
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in not interest expense) 21 93
d. |Employers’ Contributions 365 (3]
. |Benefits paid o (913) (721)
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 6,016 5,133
g T F o . L = o B A L Al at
Amountirecognized in the balance sheet consistsof . March 31,2020 [ Marchi31,2019
AT 7 e ==: icale il . (% InLakhs) ! {2in Lakhs)
a. |Fair value of plan assets a4 at beginoing/end of the year [6,046) (6,1'.ﬁ_)
b, |Present value of obligation as at the beginning/end of the year 7,063 6,498
Net liability arising from defined benefit oblipation 1,017 365

o
a. |Service cost
{i) Current service cost 374 428
(ii) Past Service Cost : - .
b. |Net interest expense 14 24
Defined benefit costs recorded in profit and loss 388 452
c. |[The return on plan asscts (greater/(less) than discount rate) (21) {93)
d. [Actvarial gains and losses arising from chianges in financial assumption 442
e. |Actuarial gains and losses atising from changes in demographic assumption -
f. |Actuarial gains and losses arising lrom changes in experience adjustments 208 6
Defined benefit costs recorded in Other comprehensive income 629 (87)
Total of defined benefit costs 1,017 365

The assumptions used in accounting for the retiring gratuity plans are set out below:

Assumptions E " Valliation as at _
Rl R March 31,2020 March 31,2019
a. |Discount rate (per annum) 6.50% 7.50%
b. |Rate of escalation in salary [per annumy)
OPR 10.00% 10.00%
NOPR 7.50% 7.50%

the rietined henelit plans avpora tha Compoany te 2 number of nctuariol ridks 83 below.

Invurtmant rislu The present value of the Jdehined Lenelit plan sUllliy 1s caliulaied usitsy o discount rate determinga vy reterence to government/bijgh
quality bond yields; {f the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the
plae’s doht invactmante.,

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an
increase in the salary of the plan parlicipants will increase the plan’s liability,

Langevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
toth during and after their employment. Anincrease in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2020 is 7 years (March 31, 2019: 6 years).
The Company expects to contribute X 1,017 Lakhs to the funded retiring gratuily plans in financial year 2021,

The fair value of Company's plan asset as of March 31, 2020 and 2019 by category are as follows:

Investinent details (%) Asat March 31,2020 | As at March 31, 2019
2. |GOI Securities (Central and State) 1h 01% 12 20%
b. |High Quality Corgorate Bonds {Including Public Sector Bonds) ' 7.15% 1,44%
c. |Cash & Scheme of Insurance - conventicnal products 76.82% 85.36%
100.00%

The table below cutlines the effect on the service cost, the interest cost and the defined benefit obligation in the event of a docre
the assuried rate ol discounlale, saldry esealatlun and Iaflaton cost:

W
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TATA STEEL UTILITILS AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities ond Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

- Impact on seheme:
- Assumption Change in assumption
B i s Habilitios

As at March 31,2020

lncrease by 1%, | Decrense Lw h i, Incroase

Discount rate

theerease by 1% by 7% =
se Yo Incrense 7%, degrease
Salary escalation Inerease by 195 |inerense by porea
dacrease by 1% by 6%

As at March 31,2019

2

Increase by 1%,| Decrease by 6%, Incriases

Discount rate

decrease by 1% by 6%
Increase by 1%,|Increase by 6%, decroase

Salary escalation

decrease by 1% by 6%

The above sensitivitics may not be representative of the actual change in the definzd benefit abligation as it is unlikely that the changir in azsurnptions
would occur in isolation of ene another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Packsgling & Tianspuilatlun Beielll 3Llientie:
The Packaging & Transporlation Benefit Scheme is a Defined Benefit Plan that provides a benelit upon meeting the requisite service eligibility criteria.
Packing & transportation is given to officers for shifting their household materials which is up to 1.5 times of their last drawn Salary,

Farewell Gift Benefit Scheme:

The Farewell Gift Bencfit Scheme is a Defined Benefit Plan that provides a benefit upon meeting the requisite service eligibility criteria. The Farcwali
Benefit 1s given ta cetiring employees in terms of gift coupons as per the category, i.e. X 5000/- to all NOPRs, X 7000/~ to OPR of 'JMO01 to JIMO?" and ¢
5000/- to other OPR.

The following table sets out the amounts recognized in the financial statements for the other defined benefit plans in respect of the company:

T Saesver ) _For the Year, andadn- SR RD
g by || "March 31,20200
] . 0 _ i (%inlakhs) |
a. |Obligation as at the beginning of the year 178
b. [Current service cost 15
C. |Interest cost 13
d. |Re-measurement [gains)/losses
|| Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption 18
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments (11) [15)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumption . .
e. |Benefits pald (6) {S)
Obligation as at the end of the year 207 178
7 - For the year ended ]
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss Rarch 31,2020 | March 31,2018
{€in Lakhs) {%inLakhs)
a. |Service cost
(i) Current service cost 15 14
(ii) Past Service Cost - -
b, |Nelinterest expense 13 13
Defined benefit costs recorded in profit and loss 28 27
c. |Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumption 18
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial pains and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments {11) {15)
Defined benefit costs recorded in Other comprehensive income 7 (15)
Total of defined benefit costs 35 = 12

The assumptions used in accaunting for the other defined banefit plans are set out below:

; ~ Valustlon as at IS
Assumpliaus: . | March 31,2020 March 31,2019
a, |Discount rate {per annur) b.50% 1.50%
1. |Nato of eecealdtiun in satary (per aninuny)
OFR 3 10.00%
HOPK B - 7 50% B

10 years (March 31, 2019: @ yaarg) for Packing & Tronsportation Bencfit.

The table below outlines the effect on the service cost, the interest cost and the defined benefit obligation in the event of 8 d('c
Lhe assuried vate of discoung race, salary escalation and intlation cost:
L ARLE,
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES ANO INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities ond Services Compuny Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

Assumption | change In sssumption | Tmpact on seheme Habiiities

As at March 31,2020

Farewell Gift: Decrease loy 6% and
Inereass by 1%, |Increase by 6%.

decrense by 1% Packing & Transportatlo n; Decresse
by 9% and Increase by 10%.

Inereise by 1%, |Packing & Transportation: Increase by
docroain by 1% 10% and Decrease by 9%,

Discount rate

Silary escalation

As at March 31,2019

Farewell Gift: Decrease by 5% and
Increase by 1%,|Increase by 6%.

decrense by 1% Packing & Transportation: Decrease
by 8% and Increase by 10%.

Increase by 1%,|Packing & Transportation: Increase by
docrensa by 1% 9% and Decrease by 8%,

Discount rate

Salary escalation

The above sensitivities may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of ane another as some of the assumotions mav be correlated




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

26(C): Information about Operating segments

Tin Lakhy
Particulars Service Power Canstrugtion Un-allocated Total

Total Revenue 54,327 32,572 20,105 | . 10004
18,306 36.680 26,027 RIRIE]
Segment Results beflore finance cost and taxes. 5,850 2,046 6G0 - = H,-ssé
5.357 2,429 #38 8,624
Unallocpted Corporate Expenses (net off other Income) 3,826 | 3;7_6
2005 [ 2,005
Finance Costs (net of income) 8 676 20 (326 ) = 378
- 574 22 26 622
Profit before taxes and exceptional items __ 4,352
5997

Exceptional Items .

Taxes 15
L A
Profit after taxes (Total Comprehensive Income of the 5
year) =" 5 1,562
Segment assets 21,293 23,558 21,856 18,311 85,018
19,689 23,221 27,640 11,532 42,082
Segment Liabilities 26,612 23,094 19,015 4,295 73,016
24,566 21,060 22,339 4,883 72.848
Segment assels capitalized during the period. 370 5.475 87 - 5,932
372 2,287 80 273
Segment depreciation 214 1,521 266 103 2,108
117 1,264 269 56 1,706
Nan-cash expenses other than depreciation - . 583 388 971
= = 1,081 (52) 1,029

Notes:

(i) The Company has disclosed business segment as the primary segment. There is no significant difference in the business conditions prevailing in various states in India,
where the company has its operations. There are no sales made by the company to external customers outside India. Consequently, there is no nced for separate
disclasure far geagraphienl sogment as renuired undes INN AS-10R” Nparating Segmant”.

(ii) Segment Revenue, Segment Results, Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments as also amounts
allocated on a reasonable basis. Assets and Liabilities that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as unallocated corporate assals and liabilitios

respectively.

(iii) Total un-allocable assets exclude:

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2020 ;
(% in Lakhs) (% in'takhs)
Investments in Subsidiary 400 400
Equity Accounted Investments - = = 1,368 ——=—1:308%
Deferred Tax assels 2,613 3,172
Total - 4,381 4,940
{iv) Total un-allocable liabilities exclude: =
As-atMarch 31, 2020( As at March 31, 2019
(% in Lakhs) [T Lakhs)
Secured loan {cash credit and Term Loan) 12
Provision for taxation - 428
Total = 440

(v} Previous vear [iglires are n lalics,
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED

(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

26(D): Related party transactions

List of related Parties and relationships:

—

Party

i

Relationship

Tata Sons Private Limited

Promotor of Holding Cormpany

Tata Steel Limited

Holding Company

Adityapur Toll Bridge Company Limited

Tayo Rolls Limited

The Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited

Tala Pigments Limited

Tinplate Company of India Limited

Tala Metaliks DI Pipes Limited

—

Tata Steel Long Products Limited

Tata Steel Foundation

Jamshedpur Football and Sporting Private Limited

Tata Steel Bhushan Steel Limited

Tata Steel Downstream Products Limited

Fellow subsidiaries

Tata Blue Scope Steel limited

MJunction Services Limited

Jamipol Itd

Tivi International Logistics Limited

>

Private Limited

Jamshedpur Continuous Annealing & Processing Company

Nicco Jubilee Park Limited

Joint Venture of Holding Company

Haldia Water Management Limited Subsidiarles
Kalimati Global Shared Services Limited Subsidiaries
Nabadiganta Water Management Ltd. Joint Ventures
SEZ Adityapur Limited Joint Ventures

Mr. Ashish Mathur [Upto July 31, 2018]

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Tarun Kumar Daga [From August 01, 2018])

Key Managerial Personnel

() Transactions with related parties in the normal course of business are as follows:

% in Lakhs

Promotorof |

e Fallow: I of Holding| Joint  |Kay Managarial
i inp: | ing compuny b A 5 alles SRS b
Particular Holding Holding compuny Sbildiries Camany sulisldi Verulires: bareanasl
Eth Company___ i ;
Purchase ot Power i 15,151
- (18,187) - -
- | 611 2,583 ] : -
Purchase of Goocds/Stare L
s DAL ST : (2,170) (1,079) 0] -
Sale of Power 639 12 = = =
{580) (12) - -
Rendering of services x 12,587 2:522 10 ——— 9 ——]
J R (75,632) (2,208) (5) '
Receiving of services 171 ot 43 4 m
(191) (997) (54) (12) Y O\
* ™
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jamshedpur Utilities and Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

Lin Lakhs
iy - AREIEACEARNS < Fellow 1V of Holding| mlgjgl'ht Koy Managorlal
Particulars Holding | Holding company [ “SloW. — [HVICTHORINBL oy cmaries [ 2080 ey Manakerk:
i i subsidijaries Campany Ventures Personnel
Company ayutiic
- 0 0
Interest Expenses i —————
{14) (0) e L
. - - - 1 2
Expenses incurred I —
e : () 1 E
Rent Expenses = = - =
! (2} =
Unsecured advances/ - 901 330 - - -
deposits accepted - {1.427) {100} - -
- 171 - - - =
Dividend paid A MlFATe=S
P " (102) e ] g
Dividend received = = = - = S0
; : = 2 : : - 149
Remuneration paid
B B - B - - {218)
[iijI Outstanding transactions:
% in Lakhs
f = =T R N R | R ] ‘
3 Fellow: WofHolding| ... .. - loint Key Manuagerial
| Halding company, subsidiaries. | Company. SUbsldiaties | Ventures 'Personnel
23367 882 0 < 11 ]
Trade Receivabl .
S > (28,257) (1,034) 2) 1,456)
Other financial Assets (ICD) = = s - {11‘:55;3) - .
Other financial Assets S _ (;;;78) (;)
Trade payables ALY e — g = 13
F (168) (39) (387) (4] - (12)
Other non-financijal - 3,088 219 - -
liabilities (5,377) (110) -
Notes:

* During the current year, company has written off Trade reccivables of 1,440 Lakhs and Other financial assets of X 301 Lakhs.
Company has provided support letter to Haldia Water Management Limited for X 514 Lakhs and SEZ Adityapur Limited for X 10 Lakhs for
meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due for a period of 12 months.
Previous year figures in jtalics and in brackets.

L ratlure

[

Do
\l
\

Lt
Chartered Accountants \

o

— Mu?nba\ ] * ;,"'

T ——
~ & Col Pi’””':"@rm
o7 N AAC. 4 &
TLPINAAC *'mi"

2

3 u\!\‘P/li\
o 30anap E/E"P'Q SN
e ———l AJAS > ?;/

%
=




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jomshedpur Utllitles and Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Flnanclal Statement

26(E): Contingent Llabllities snd commitments

Clalms not acknowledged by the Company:

@ - ; . A at March 31,
. . As at March 3, 2000 A% 2t Mareh 31
s s b o [ R P e SR RIS
: . ! f&gwgw : . IS R ERER (5 (2 in Lakhs)
S.ules Tax, UAT&Surw:v I"w 9,414 7,781
« Logal cases 211 213
- Income Tax 1714 1,565 ]

26(F): The dues as defined in the “"Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Developmant Act, 2006" has been determined to the extent stich partios e
been identilied on the basis of inforimation available with the Company. The disclosures relating to Micro & Small Enterprises letniing port of note 19{a)

as at March 31, 2020 are as ynder;

ﬁ"a__. 2 ; FEe
Due In respect uf Mﬁ:rn, Smnll and Mlatflum Ind-ustrh’_s is
{a) (I} Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at the 1415 160
end of accounting year A5 H
(I1) Interest due thereon 2 1
(b)) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registared under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day, 9,618 i'gas
during the year ‘ s
{if) Interest paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
{e} Interest due and payable for the year ,where the principal has been paid but interest under the 2 12
MSMED Act, 2006 not paid b )
(1) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at.the end ofaccounting year 133 106
26{G): Earnings per Share (EPS)
: LN | fortheyearended | Forthe year ended
Particulars: March 31, 020 March31, 2019
{Xin Lakhs) {%in Lakhs)
(i) Profit/(Loss) for the vear 3,338 4,496
(i) Profit/(Loss] attributable to equity Shareholders ol the campany used in calculating basic/Dlluted EPS 3,338 4,496
(i} Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as donominator in calculating Basic/Diluted EPS 2,43,50,000 2,37.69.i38—
(iv) Neminal value of Qrdinary Shares (Rs) 10 10
(v) Basic /biluted Earnings per Ordinary Share (Rs] 13,71 18.91

26{H): Income tax recognlsad In profit or loss

| Furft'h'él;j_e}:r_en_ﬂr'd

For the year ended

g e PPartieylars. tviarch 31, 2020 March 31,2019
e i Laklis) (Tl Laklis)
Current Tax
- In respect of current year 982 2,144
Iin respect of prior year {34) {36)
Deferred Tax 559 (673)
Total Income tax recognised in the 1,507 1,435

Eﬂ Cn Cll !l[f;ﬂnf G~




TATA STEEL UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly - Jomshedpur Utilities and Services Compony Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financlal Statement

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

o Far the yearended | For the year endod

- e . Particulars. farch 31, 2020 March 31,2019

: . e g e e oSl
% . o . L% In Lakhs) ~ (20 Lakhs)

Profit before tax [rom continuing operations 4,352 5897
{a) Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% (March 31, 2019: 34.944%) 1,095 2,006
b) Decrease in tax expenses due 1o benefit of 80/1A . (654)
¢) Effect of expenses not allowed in income tax 32 43
{d) Adjustments to current tax In respect of prior periods (34) {46)
(e} Reversal of OTL originated during tax holiday period - 49
(f) Effect of change in Income tax rates on deferred tax 888 28
(B Cifect of raversal of provision on which deferred tax was not created (461) (18)
{h) Adjustments 1o delerred tax in respect of prior periods - (16)

(1] Tax on exempl income (13) .
(I) Total 1,507 1,415
Income tax expenses recopnised in profit or loss account 1,507 | 1,435

The tax rate used for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 roconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 25.168% and 34,9441
respectively payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax laws.

Significant component of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows:

T Lakhs
Y emaibbraze " Deferred tax: o = 2= T
SRS el iz 55 : ey Kiop M1 -
Ly il > (exp O e e e it 131 | g A Al o g
/ lﬁcému As at March 5_1-, (expe fincome. | Asat March 31,
2018 T 0 2019 recognisedin profit 2020
’ recognisedin
e T s -and loss
: { _profitand loss =
Deferred Tax Asset
Provision for leave salaries 1,382 (39) 1,343 (310) 1,033
Olher Provisions 1,357 738 2,096 |287) 1,409
Pravision for Employee Separation Scheme 608 12 620 1174) 446
Deferred Incame 2,501 217 2,718 {439) 2;279
Total 5,848 929 6,777 {1,210) 5,567
Deferred Tax Liability
Fikod Assets 3,349 256 3,605 {651) 2,954
Totol 39,349 258 3,605 (651) 2,954
Net Deferred tax asset 2,499 673 3,172 {559) 2,613

26(1) Leases:

The Company has taken certain plant and machinery under operating leases. The following is the summary of future minimum lease rental payments

under non-cancellable operating leases entered into by the Company:

As at March 31,2020

As at Mareh 31,

Future minimum lease payments (% inLakhs) 2019

: (% in Lakhs)
(i} Notlater than 1year i N 136
{il) Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years ) Ll 154
{ili} Later than 5 years
Operating lease charge
(i) Lease payments recognised (i the profit & loss account 140
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TATA STEEL UTILITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly - Jomshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the same to all Iease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using thi
modified retrospective approach with right-of-use asset recognized at an amount equal to the lease liabiiity, adjusted by the amount of sny prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to those leases. Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted,

On adoption of Ind AS 116, the company recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classifiee s operating lease unti
the principles of Ind AS 17, Leases, These liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lesse's
incremental horrowing rate as on April 01, 2019. The weighted average lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied o the lease llabilities on April 01,
2019 was 11.06%.

The Campany has applied excinptions presciibid In g AS 116 “Leases” (o short-term leases of all assets that have a lease Lerm of 12 months or loss
and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The léase payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a stralght-

line basis over the lease term.

Measurement of Lease llabllities

Particulars ' ' : S TR e | =S Tn T s

Operating lease commitmaonts as at March 31, 2019 290
Discounted wsing the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of at the date of initial application 259
Short-term leases recognized on a stealght-ling basis as expenze 19
Lease liability recognised as at April 1, 2018 240

Following the application of the modified retrospective method at the date of adoption of Ind AS 116 "Leases”, right-of-use assets ol T 240 Lakhs wore
measured.

The statement of Profil & loss shows the following ameunt relating (o leases.

[peies S & - e lE P As at March 31,
Particulars Note No 2019
. ; . 2 (X in Lakhs)

Depreclation Charge af Right ta Use Assels

Freehold Land 3A 0

Property, Plant & Equipment 3A 111

Office Equipment 3A 23
Interest Expenses (Included in Finance Cost) 24 27
Expenses related to Short term Leases (Included in Other expenses) 29

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended was X 195 Lakhs.
Rent expenses also include renk nf guest hnyses and company quarters which have not been classified as short term lease,

26()): The new section — Seclion 115BAA has been inserted in the Income Tax Act,1961 to give the benefit of a reduced corporate tax rate for the
domestic companies. Section 115BAA states that domestic companies have the oplion to pay tax at a rate of 22% from the FY 2019-20 {AY 2020-21)
onwards if such domestic companies adhere to certain conditions specified.

Further, the Central Board of Direct Taxes (CBDT) has issued Circular No. 29/2019 dated 2 October 2019 read with Section 115BAA and Section 115J8 of
the Income Tax Act 1961, clarifying that the companies which opt for the recently announced reduced corporate tax rate of 22% will not be eligible ta
claim set-off of brought forward (i) credit on account of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in the past; and {ii) loss on account of additional
depreciation. Basis the assessment performed by the management, it has opted to exercise the option of new tax rate under section 1158AA.
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